
~. 

mesa·az 


OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

COUNCIL MINUTES 

October 7, 2010 

The City Council of the City of Mesa met in a Study Session in the lower level meeting room of the 
Council Chambers, 57 East 1st Street, on October 7,2010 at 7:32 a.m. 

COUNCIL PRESENT COUNCIL ABSENT OFFICERS PRESENT 

Scott Smith Dina Higgins Christopher Brady 
Alex Finter Debbie Spinner 
Kyle Jones Linda Crocker 
Dennis Kavanaugh 
Dave Richins 
Scott Somers 

Mayor Smith excused Councilwoman Higgins from the entire meeting. 

1-a. 	 Hear a presentation, discuss, and provide direction on consumers use of fireworks within the 
City of Mesa. 

Fire Chief Harry Beck reported that the State Legislature recently passed a Bill that would allow 
the sale of consumer fireworks to individuals 16 years of age and under. He stated that as a 
result of such legislation, local jurisdictions must now determine how to address the use of 
fireworks in their communities. 

Chief Beck advised that Mesa's Fire Code currently prohibits the sale and use of fireworks 
within City limits and noted that staff was seeking Council direction relative to the development 
of an ordinance regulating the use of consumer fireworks in the City of Mesa. 

Assistant Fire Chief Dan Stubbs stated that although the new law, which takes effect December 
1, 2010, prohibits local jurisdictions from restricting the sale of consumer fireworks, it allows 
incorporated cities or towns to regulate the use of permissible consumer fireworks within their 
corporate limits. He displayed a map illustrating the unincorporated areas of the City of Mesa 
(See Attachment 1) and said that individuals residing in County Islands within the City limits 
would be allowed to use permissible consumer fireworks. 

Chief Stubbs briefly reviewed various elements of the legislation as follows: 

• 	 Does not prohibit the imposition by ordinance of further regulations and prohibitions on 
the sale, use and posseSSion of fireworks other than permissible consumer fireworks 
(i.e., sparklers, snakes). 



Study Session 
October 7, 2010 
Page 2 

• 	 Local jurisdictions can require permits for quantities in excess of exempt amounts. 
• 	 The State forester may require reimbursement from cities and other political subdivisions 

of the State and State and Federal agencies for costs incurred in the suppression of 
wildfires. 

Chief Stubbs displayed a chart illustrating which Valley communities prohibit/allow the use of 
fireworks and their status with regard to the new legislation. (See Attachment 2) 

Chief Beck noted that because the law does not go into effect until December, if the Council 
directed that staff develop an ordinance to regulate the use of permissible consumer fireworks in 
the City of Mesa, it would be important to educate the public in this regard. 

Chief Stubbs further reported that Maricopa County would take no action concerning this matter 
other than what was stated in the legislation as follows: "A county may regulate the use of 
permiSSible consumer fireworks within the unincorporated areas during times when there is a 
reasonable risk of wild land fires in the immediate county." He said that the County would treat 
the use of fireworks in a similar manner as "no burn days" and added that on the day of use, if 
conditions proved unwarranted, the State may prohibit their use in the County. 

Chief Stubbs also remarked that it was the recommendation of the Fire Department that the use 
of consumer fireworks within the City of Mesa be prohibited. He stated that in the alternative, the 
Council might wish to consider the following options: 1.) Restrict the sale of consumer fireworks 
to certain occupancy types or deSignated areas; 2.) Establish a permit fee and require a 
business license for the sale of fireworks; 3.) Limit the use to certain days of the year (Le., 4th of 
July or New Year's Eve); 4.) Limit the use to certain hours of the day; 5.) Limit the sales, such 
as two weeks before an approved holiday; and 6.) Require a consumer permit, which would 
include a safety packet approved by the Fire Marshall. 

Responding to a question from Mayor Smith, Chief Stubbs clarified that most of the fires or 
injuries that the Fire Department has responded to over the years have been from the type of 
fireworks that have exploded and said that the use of such items would remain illegal in the City 
of Mesa. 

Mayor Smith commented that if the Council chose not to allow the use of fireworks in the City of 
Mesa they could simply reaffirm the current ordinance and not consider the alternatives 
suggested by staff. 

Councilmember Kavanaugh concurred with Mayor Smith's comment and said it was 
unnecessary for the City to "dilute the message by adding complications or confusion." He 
noted that the health, safety and welfare of the community were the reasons the ordinance was 
enacted in the first place and said those reasons have not changed. 

City Manager Christopher Brady clarified that the alternatives presented by Chief Stubbs were 
simply that and said that staff's recommendation was to prohibit the use of consumer fireworks 
within the City limits. 

Councilmember Finter commented that he would like to see a compromise reached wherein 
responsible adults could supervise the use of consumer fireworks in controlled situations so that 



Study Session 
October 7, 2010 
Page 3 

families would have the opportunity to enjoy holiday celebrations such as the 4th of July or New 
Year's Day. 

Responding to a question from Vice Mayor Jones, Chief Stubbs reiterated that any type of 
explosives or items that could be launched into the air would be prohibited for sale. 

Chief Beck further reported that the City has historically taken the position that if an individual 
were injured or created a fire by using fireworks, the City had legal recourse to pursue the 
matter. He noted, however, that if the City allowed the use of fireworks, it would accept the 
responsibility of managing whatever incident occurred as a result of such action. 

Mayor Smith expressed frustration that the State Legislature has placed municipalities in the 
"absurd position" of not being allowed to prohibit the sale of fireworks, but yet having the ability 
to regulate their use. 

Vice Mayor Jones commented that he would prefer some time to reflect on the matter and for 
staff to bring back a draft ordinance for further Council consideration and input. 

Councilmember Somers expressed support for staff's recommendation and noted that the 
fireworks industry would be the only entity that would benefit from the new law. He commented 
on the dangerous nature of sparklers and said that not only do they cause personal injury, but 
they also cause fires and damage to adjacent properties whose owners have had nothing to do 
with their sale, purchase or use. Councilmember Somers added that although the City cannot 
prohibit the sale of fireworks, it could display signage indicating that fireworks were prohibited 
within the City limits. 

Councilmember Richins also voiced support for staff's recommendation and said that he was 
"stunned" by the Legislature's failure to "think through" the fireworks Bill, their lack of 
coordination with cities and towns, and the resulting ramifications of such legislation. 

Mayor Smith commented that the City cannot restrict the sale of fireworks and questioned how it 
could regulate the manner in which they are sold. 

Deputy City Attorney Alfred Smith responded that the regulation of how and when fireworks are 
sold is a decision for the Council to make. 

Mayor Smith requested that staff bring back options concerning how to regulate the sale of 
fireworks that would make the most impact for the City. He added that he would also like to see 
the inclusion of an option that would place responsibility on the person using the fireworks if an 
incident occurred which resulted in a fire or personal injury. 

(Vice Mayor Jones left the meeting at 8:11 a.m.) 

Councilmember Finter requested that staff provide the Council statistical data for the last five 
years with respect to fireworks incidents/concerns on the 4th of July and New Year's Eve. He 
also suggested that staff draft a compromise ordinance that includes those two holidays as 
permissible dates when fireworks could be used in the City of Mesa. 



Study Session 
October 7,2010 
Page 4 

Chief Beck stated that it was important to review the data in . those states that have dry 
conditions like Arizona. He expressed concern that this was a tactic for the fireworks industry "to 
get the nose under the tent" and added that in other states in which the use of fireworks have 
been legalized, the kind of fireworks that are allowed often escalates beyond sparklers and 
snakes to aerial devices. 

Mayor Smith thanked staff for the presentation. 

1-b. 	 Hear a presentation. discuss and provide direction on priorities for use of Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) funding. 

Neighborhood Services Department Director Ray Villa reported that the City of Mesa has begun 
the application process for FY 2011/2012 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and 
HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) funding. He explained that staff was seeking Council 
direction regarding their priorities for the use of such funding in relationship to the Council's 
Strategic Initiatives. Mr. Villa also noted that the Housing Advisory Board would review the 
applications and added that staff developed a rating tool to assist the Board in that regard. 

Responding to a question from Councilmember Kavanaugh, Mr. Villa clarified that the Human 
Services Advisory Board reviews only the human services applications and that the CDBG 
applications are reviewed by the Housing Advisory Board. He noted that human services 
funding is based on guidelines established by the Council and that the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has developed guidelines that are utilized with regard 
to CDBG and HOME funding. 

Mayor Smith clarified that General Fund disbursements for human services agencies go through 
the Human Services Advisory Board and CDBG funding does not, regardless of which agency 
they are disbursed to. 

Councilmember Kavanaugh noted that the Council previously indicated that economic 
development was a priority for the use of CDBG funds and yet there did not appear to be a 
process in place wherein the Economic Development Advisory Board (EDAB) had been asked 
to provide input on such applications. He expressed concern that the Housing Advisory Board 
was limited in terms of seeking public input and consensus on applications that go beyond 
housing issues or capital projects. 

Mayor Smith stated that he would prefer that the Council be given the opportunity to set their 
funding priorities and that staff would then implement a process to review the funding 
applications. 

City Manager Christopher Brady clarified that the funding applications would include housing, 
public service and economic development projects. He acknowledged that there was not one 
board that was better suited to review all those applications and suggested that perhaps the 
housing and economic development applications could be separated and reviewed by the 
Housing Advisory Board and EDAB respectively. 

Council member Richins stated that instead of the City receiving applications for projects that 
various agencies would like to complete, he envisioned a process in which the Council would 
make known their priorities and then attract the capacity to accomplish those goals. 



Study Session 
October 7,2010 
Page 5 

Responding to Councilmember Richins' comments, Mr. Villa advised that the newly created 
rating tool included a point value for projects related to the Council's Strategic Initiatives. 

Mr. Villa suggested that prior to the Housing Advisory Board reviewing the applications and 
making their recommendations, it might be appropriate for staff to solicit input/direction from the 
Community & Neighborhood Services Committee regarding the funding application process. 

Councilmember Richins said that he was comfortable with the Housing Advisory Board's current 
timeline for this year and encouraged staff to refine the funding application process over a 
period of years. 

Councilmember Kavanaugh thanked staff for advancing the time requirements relative to this 
process and said it makes the Council's job easier and provides them with more time to 
deliberate. He stated that it would be helpful for EDAB to review the economic development 
applications since those members might have different skill sets than the individuals serving on 
the Housing AdviSOry Board. 

Mayor Smith commented that as a policy making board, it was more advantageous for the 
Council to receive funding application information that was "filtered" through the community as 
opposed to the Council being the first entity to receive such data. 

Housing and Revitalization Director Carolyn Olson displayed a PowerPoint presentation (See 
Attachment 3) and offered a brief overview of the CDBG national objectives and eligible 
activities. (See Pages 4 and 5 of Attachment 3) She stated that the Housing AdviSOry Board 
agreed to utilize a rating system (See Page 6 of Attachment 3) during their evaluation of the 
CDBG applications. 

Ms. Olson also highlighted recent and estimated CDBG funding levels (See Page 7 of 
Attachment 3) and provided a short synopsis of the types of programs that were funded in FY 
2010/2011. (See Pages 8,9 and 10 of Attachment 3) 

Ms. Olson further reviewed the HOME Investment Partnership Program objectives. (See Page 
11 of Attachment 3) and said that each sub-recipient must provide a 25% non-Federal match for 
the funds it was awarded. She also remarked that the City must set aside 15% of its HOME 
allocation for housing development activities in which qualified Community Housing 
Development Organizations (CHDOs) are owners, developers or sponsors of such activities. 
Ms. Olson, in addition, spoke regarding the HOME programs that were funded in FY 2010/2011. 
(See Page 14 of Attachment 3) 

Councilmember Kavanaugh acknowledged staff for their hard work in dealing with the 
applicants for the various grants. He stated that he appreciated the emphasis on economic 
development as a tool to use CDBG funding for job recruitment/retention issues and added that 
it would be helpful to continue to use such a tool in the downtown and the Fiesta District. 

Mr. Brady noted that in the near future, staff would like to look at programs in CDBG-eligible 
areas, and specifically in downtown Mesa during the construction of light rail, in order to support 
the local businesses during that period of time. 



Study Session 
October 7, 2010 
PageS 

Mayor Smith also suggested that the City consider ways to assist the business owners that 
would be impacted by light rail construction with directional and back store signage. 

Councilmember Somers said that he would like the Council to consider the issue of CDBG 
dollars that are used to fund City positions, such as Code Compliance officers, that should be 
funded through the General Fund. He also encouraged his fellow Councilmernbers to earmark 
more CDBG monies for job creation and less on housing, since the City has been awarded 
approximately $9.6 million through the Neighborhood Stabilization Program for such efforts. 

Mayor Smith thanked staff for the presentation. 

1-c. Hear a presentation, discuss and provide direction on the Neighborhood Stabilization Program. 

Neighborhood Services Department Director Ray Villa and Development Project Coordinator 
Ray Thimesch addressed the Council relative to this agenda item. 

Mr. Thimesch displayed a PowerPoint presentation (See Attachment 4) and reported that the 
purpose of the Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP). which began two years ago, was to 
acquire and rehabilitate foreclosed or abandoned properties in those areas of Mesa most 
significantly impacted. He explained that per Council direction, staff focused their efforts on the 
85204 Zip Code area. 

Mr. Thimesch stated that the homes the City purchased/rehabilitated are resold to reduce blight 
and bolster neighborhood home values and noted that green technology was utilized to make 
the homes more affordable and sustainable. He also explained that Mesa's program included 
the installation of residential fire sprinkler systems, new roofs and energy efficient air 
conditioning units. Mr. Thimesch added that staff focused on purchasinglrehabbing block 
homes that were more durable and would maintain the aesthetic character of the neighborhood. 

Mayor Smith thanked staff "for going above and beyond" in their rehabilitation efforts. He said 
that staff has created "anchor properties" in neighborhoods that would hopefully influence other 
homeowners to upgrade their properties. 

Mr. Thimesch briefly highlighted the manner in which the City of Mesa's $9.6 million in funding 
was allocated (See Page 3 of Attachment 4); the breakdown of the total award in committed and 
expended funds (See Page 4 of Attachment 4); and an analysis of the number of homes 
purchased/rehabilitated, rehabilitation underway/pending, and those properties rehabilitated and 
transferred to non-profits (See Pages 5 and 6 of Attachment 4). 

Mr. Thimesch displayed a map (See Page 8 of Attachment 4) illustrating the properties that the 
City of Mesa acquired and said that staff focused on an area bounded by Main Street and 10th 

Avenue and from Mesa Drive to Gilbert Road. 

Mr. Thimesch further reviewed a series of "before and after" photographs of renovated homes. 
(See Pages 9 thro,",gh 13 of Attachment 4) 

Mr. Thimesch remarked that NSP 3 has been announced and that the City has been awarded 
$4 million in funding. He advised that staff was waiting to receive the guidelines to determine 
the manner in which those funds could be used and added that they would like to continue to 



Study Session 
October 7,2010 
Page 7 

follow the same guidelines as the current NSP with regard to the acquisition, redevelopment 
and demolition of properties in the 85204 Zip Code area. He added that to date, the City has 
brought in program income of approximately $1 million with the sale of ten properties. 

Mr. Brady clarified that once staff receives the specific guidelines, they would come back to 
Council to discuss whether to continue with the same strategy in the 85204 Zip Code area or 
possibly expand to other areas of the community. 

Councilmember Richins commented that an emerging issue in the community that he is aware 
of are rundown fourplexes that are owned or in foreclosure. He stated that he would like the City 
to consider acquiring/demolishing such properties and land banking the properties for a period 
of time. Council member Richins noted that in particular, he was referring to a specific area 
adjacent to the Banner Corporate Center. 

Councilmember Kavanaugh stated that staff has done a remarkable job which has had a 
positive impact on the community. He stated that he looked forward to future discussions 
regarding this matter and said he was hopeful that the boundaries for the NSP could be 
extended beyond the 85204 Zip Code area. 

Councilmember Somers stated that he was intrigued by Councilmember Richins' suggestion of 
purchasing and demolishing rundown fourplexes and land banking the properties. 

Responding to question from Councilmember Somers, Mr. Brady stated that if the Council 
wanted to consider the City demolishing the Escobedo property, the City could utilize NSP 
funding to do so. 

Mayor Smith stated that he was aware of many communities across the country that have 
struggled with the NSP Program and expressed appreciation to staff for their creativity and 
professionalism in making the program a success in the City of Mesa. 

2. Acknowledge receipt of minutes of various boards and committees. 

a. Transportation Advisory Board meeting held June 15, 2010. 
b. Library Advisory Board meeting held May 18, 2010. 

It was moved by Councilmember Somers, seconded by Councilmember Finter, that receipt of 

the above-listed minutes be acknowledged. 


Mayor Smith declared the motion carried unanimously by those present. 


3. Hear reports on meetings and/or conferences attended. 

Council member Kavanaugh: 	 Attended the Family Self-Sufficiency Program graduation 
ceremony 



Study Session 
October 7,2010 
PageS 

4. 	 Scheduling of meetings and general information. 

City Manager Christopher Brady stated that the meeting schedule is as follows: 

Thursday, October 14, 2010, 7:30 a.m. - Study Session 

Saturday, October 16, 2010, 10:00 a.m. - "Rockin' on Ray Road" Event 

Mr. Brady reported that at the October 2nd Household Hazardous Waste event, the City 
collected 9,460 gallons of hazardous waste, the third highest amount since the inception of the 
event. He also stated that 1,133 vehicles dropped off hazardous waste material during the 
event. 

Public Information and Communication Specialist II Jessie Brodersen addressed the Council 
and briefly highlighted the City's new website, which "went live" this morning. 

5. 	 Prescheduled Public Opinion Appearances. 

a. 	 Hear from Brad Stratton regarding the Police Towing Services Contract. 

Brad Stratton, a consultant for Thompson Diversified, stated that he was pleased to hear that 
the City Council would be asked to reconsider the Police Towing Services Contract award and 
may decide to rebid the contract. He recounted various incidents that occurred during the July 8, 
2010 Regular Council meeting when the towing services contract was discussed and also 
suggested various alternatives to resolve the matter. 

6. 	 Items from Citizens Present. 

There were no items from citizens present. 

7. 	 Convene an executive session. 

It was moved by Councilmember Somers, seconded by Councilmernber Kavanaugh, that the 
Council adjourn the Study Session at 9:34 a.m. and enter into an Executive Session. 

Mayor Smith declared the motion carried unanimously by those present and an Executive 
Session was convened at 9:35 a.m. 

a. 	 Discussion or consultation with the City Attorney in order to consider the City's position 
and instruct the City Attorney regarding the City's position regarding contracts that are 
the subject of negotiations, in pending or contemplated litigation or in settlement 
discussions conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation. (A.R.S. §38-431.03A(4» 
Discussion or consultation with deSignated representatives of the City in order to 
consider the City's position and instruct the City's representatives regarding negotiations 
for the purchase, sale, or lease of real property. (A.R.S. §38-431.03A (7)) 

1. Chicago Cubs Spring Training 



Study Session 
October 7. 2010 
Page 9 

8. Adjournment. 

Without objection, the Executive Session adjourned at 10:23 a.m. 

SCOTT SMITH, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

LINDA CROCKER, CITY CLERK 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Study 
Session of the City Council of Mesa, Arizona, held on the ih day of October 2010. I further certify that 
the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

LINDA CROCKER, CITY CLERK 

pag 

(attachments - 4) 



































































